MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING BOARD OF REGENTS OF THE UNIVERSITY OF OKLAHOMA SATURDAY, SEPTEMBER 17, 1966 - 10:30 A.M.

A regular meeting of the Board of Regents of the University of Oklahoma was held on Saturday, September 17, 1966, beginning at 10:30 a.m. in the office of the President of the University, Norman.

The following were present: Regent Mark R. Johnson, President, presiding; Regents Davidson, Little, Houchin, Sparks, Calvert, and Davies.

The following were also present: Dr. G. L. Cross, President of the University; Vice Presidents Pete Kyle McCarter, Horace B. Brown, Carl D. Riggs, Verne C. Kennedy; Mr. David A. Burr, Assistant to the President for University Relations; Mr. David Swank, Associate Professor of Law; Mr. James E. Swain, Director of University Relations; and Mrs. Barbara H. James, Assistant Secretary of the Board of Regents.

The minutes of the meeting held on July 14, 1966, were approved.

A report of the various achievements and accomplishments by the students, faculty, alumni and the University as a whole was included in the agenda for this meeting. The Regents unanimously agreed that letters of commendation from the President of the Board on behalf of the Regents should be sent to those individuals named in the report. Dr. Johnson stated individual members of the Board should feel free to write if they so desired.

President Cross reported that in June 1966 the State Regents for Higher Education adopted a policy, based upon the recommendation of the Presidents' Council, with regard to students who withdraw from institutions in the State System and enter military service. The policy provides that if a student enters military service during the term in which he is enrolled and he has not completed sufficient work for receiving his grades, but is in good standing academically, the institution is authorized to waive enrollment fees for the student during the term in which he reenrolls after his military service has been completed to the extent of the amount that he paid previously for enrollment in the term during which he entered military service (the institution could issue a certificate to the student for this purpose). The policy provides further that if a student enters military service during the term and is not in good academic standing at the time, the regular fee refund policy of the institution would apply.

Dr. Cross stated this policy will require each institution to keep records indefinitely on students who withdraw to enter military service

and when he returns the institution will, in effect, be subsidizing his first semester of enrollment. Each of the institutions in the State System will be required to assume an undetermined amount of expense for administrative overhead and when the students begin to return as veterans of military service it is possible the institution will become involved in much confusion in administering this new policy and at the same time administering the benefits of the current GI Bill. He said there seems to be a good chance that this policy could become quite expensive for the institution, both in increased administrative costs and in loss of fee income, without providing any net financial benefit to the students involved.

Dr. Cross said after giving the matter further thought he had conveyed these problems of administering the policy to the State Regents and had protested the policy twice by letter with no results. He said he wished the University Regents to be aware of the fact that he had protested the adoption of this policy.

Dr. Johnson reported the faculty committee appointed to assist the Regents in the selection of the new President is working very diligently and very effectively. They have received over 100 names of individuals to be considered. Dr. Johnson reminded the Regents that the planned date for the cut-off of nominations is October 1 and that nominations after that date can be received only by petition of the faculty committee to this Board.

There was a brief discussion of a date for the Annual Regents' Luncheon. It was agreed the Secretary would contact each Regent by mail and request a statement of availability and preference on the date for this luncheon.

Regent Davidson reported the Regents' Committee on the Selection of Architects had met and considered the request of Dean Dennis for an architect to design a building to house the proposed food vending service at the Medical Center. Since this building will be rather small, estimated to cost approximately \$30,000, it was the opinion of the Regents' Committee that it should be compatible with the proposed expansion of the Medical Center and should not dictate the location of larger buildings. Therefore it was the recommendation of the committee that Coston-Frankfurt-Short, Oklahoma City, be appointed architects for this project with Gorsline and Associates as consultants in connection with the location of the building. The architectural fee for the design of this structure will be paid for by the successful vendor, but the committee recommended that the fee be the same as that provided in the University's contract with Coston-Frankfurt-Short for the preparation of plans for the first phase of the Medical Center expansion.

On motion by Regent Davidson the above recommendations of the committee were approved.

Regent Davidson reported that the construction of a Physical Education--Student Recreation Building has been requested by the students. The Regents' Committee on the Selection of Architects feels such a building is essential on the campus and, even though no funds are available at the present time, has recommended that Reid and Associates and R. Paul Heap be appointed architects on a contingency basis for the preparation of plans for such a structure. This building would include all of those classroom and teaching facilities which are normally associated with Physical Education. In addition, it would include basketball courts, a swimming pool, facilities for handball, badminton, volley ball, squash, weight lifting and gymnastics equipment and facilities, extensive locker rooms for both students and faculty, possibly a dance studio, and so forth. It is not anticipated that any state funds would be used for the construction.

Regent Davidson moved that Reid and Associates and R. Paul Heap, as associates, be appointed to prepare the architectural plans for the Physical Education--Recreation Building and that the fee arrangement be on a contingent basis, subject to the availability of funds, similar to other recent architectural appointments. Approved.

Vice President Brown called the Regents' attention to action at the July 14 meeting authorizing the sale of \$2,000 Federal Home Loan bonds in the Will Rogers portfolio as recommended by J. & W. Seligman & Co. When an attempt was made to sell the bonds it was learned they may be sold in multiples of \$5,000 only. J. & W. Seligman was contacted and they recommended that none of the Federal Home Loan bonds held by the Will Rogers Fund be sold and that the purchase of IBM stock be reduced accordingly. Dr. Brown reported that this recommendation was followed by the University.

Dr. Brown reported the following amounts available for investment and since all will be needed for matching purposes for the National Defense Student Loan Program at the beginning of the second semester, he recommended they be invested in Certificates of Deposit or U. S. Treasury Bills, whichever bear the higher rate of interest, to mature on or about January 1, 1967:

Murray Case Sells Foundation - \$8,400 5% Certificate of Deposit due September 14, 1966, a \$14,000 5\% Certificate of Deposit due September 19, 1966, and \$7,000 cash.

Sallie B. Clark Loan Fund - \$5,700 cash.

On motion by Regent Johnson the recommendation for investment of these funds was approved as outlined by Dr. Brown.

Dr. Brown reported the following available for investment in the Murray Case Sells Building Fund:

\$4,600 5% Certificate of Deposit due September 14, 1966; \$1,434 52% Certificate of Deposit due September 19, 1966; and \$3,000 cash available as a result of an estate distribution of funds. He said our investment advisors, J. & W. Seligman & Co. recommend the purchase of \$9,000 Federal Land Bank 6.05% bonds due July 20, 1967. Dr. Brown concurred in this recommendation.

On motion by Regent Johnson the recommendation was approved.

On May 12, 1966, the Regents approved a recommendation from J. & W. Seligman & Co. that 100 shares of National Dairy Products Corporation stock held by the Will Rogers Fund be sold. The stock was sold on May 16. During the time the stock was being sold the company declared a two-forone stock split. Because of the time necessary to attach the legal documents pertaining to the sale and deliver them to the Transfer Agent, the split was paid on our original holding of National Dairy Products and a new certificate for 242 shares (the original holding) was issued to the Regents. We have been notified by the Transfer Agent that it will be necessary for the Regents to authorize the sale of the 242 shares issued in error before that stock certificate can be disposed of. A new certificate for 142 shares will then be prepared which will represent the actual amount due the Regents as a result of the two-for-one stock split. The following resolution suthorizing sale of the stock was unanimously approved:

RESOLUTION

RESOLVED THAT, we, the Regents of the University of Oklahoma do hereby authorize the sale of the following stock of the National Dairy Products Corporation:

242 shares - Certificate No. VU13472

and by these presents we do hereby ratify and confirm the sale of the said shares; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT, Emil R. Krsettli, Secretary of the Regents of the University of Oklahoma, be and he is hereby authorized and empowered to endorse by, and on behalf of the said Regents of the University of Oklahoma, the stock certificate mentioned above or the Assignment Separate from Certificate held by the said Regents of the University of Oklahoma, and by these presents we do hereby ratify and confirm the said endorsement of the said shares; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT, the President and the Secretary of the Regents of the University of Oklahoma be and they are hereby empowered to certify the action taken. Dr. James L. Dennis, Director and Dean of the Medical Center, was invited to the meeting during discussion of the items on the agenda pertaining to the Medical Center.

A report of the various achievements and accomplishments by the students, faculty, and the Medical Center as a whole was included in the agenda for this meeting. The Regents voted unanimously to send letters of commendation and congratulations to those mentioned in this report.

MEDICAL CENTER

LEAVES OF ABSENCE:

Louis J. West, M.D., Professor and Head of Psychiatry, Neurology, and Behavioral Sciences, leave of absence without pay, September 1, 1966 to January 1, 1967; sabbatical leave of absence changed to begin January 1, 1967.

Willard B. Moran, Jr., M.D., Assistant Professor of Otorhinolaryngology, military leave of absence, July 15, 1966.

APPOINTMENTS:

Paul Kimmelstiel, M.D., Distinguished Professor of Pathology, \$1,250 per month, August 15, 1966.

Bruce Harold Beard, M.D., Associate Professor of Psychiatry, Neurology and Behavioral Sciences, without remuneration, August 1, 1966.

Everett Ronald Rhoades, M.D., Assistant Professor of Medicine, without remuneration, September 1, 1966.

William Robinson Schmieding, Ph.D., Assistant Professor of Microbiology, without remuneration, August 1, 1966.

Betty J. Gorrell, M.S., Assistant Professor (Maternal-Child Health Nursing) of Nursing, \$777.78 per month, September 1, 1966.

Berkley S. Eichel, M.D., Assistant Professor of Otorhinolaryngology, \$1,166.65 per month, September 1, 1966.

Margaret Christian, M.S., Assistant Professor of Physical Therapy, \$700 per month, August 1, 1966.

Robert C. Hardy, M.B.A., Assistant Professor of Preventive Medicine and Public Health, without remuneration, July 1, 1966.

John Patrick Jordon, Ph.D., Assistant Professor of Research Preventive Medicine and Public Health, without remuneration, September 1, 1966.

Logan Wright, Ph.D., Assistant Professor of Pediatrics and of Medical Psychology in Psychiatry, \$1,083.33 per month, September 1, 1966.

Jed E. Goldberg, M.D., Assistant Clinical Professor of Gynecology-Obstetrics, without remuneration, September 1, 1966.

Patricia Ann Gibson, M.L.S., Instructor in Medical Library Sciences, \$541.66 per month, August 8, 1966.

Miriam Sui-Lan Tam, M.L.S., Instructor in Medical Library Sciences, \$500 per month, September 1, 1966.

Takeshi Matsuo, M.D., Instructor in Pathology, \$500 per month, August 15, 1966.

Robert Clyde Duncan, Ph.D., Instructor in Preventive Medicine and Public Health, \$916.66 per month, August 1, 1966.

John F. McCoy, Ph.D., Instructor in Preventive Medicine and Public Health, \$916.66 per month, August 1, 1966.

Bernard Arnold Green, Ph.D., Instructor in Medical Psychology in Psychiatry, \$833.33 per month, August 1, 1966.

Frank A. Holloway, Jr., Ph.D., Instructor in Medical Psychology in Psychiatry, \$833.33 per month, September 1, 1966.

James Wise, M.D., Clinical Instructor in Ophthalmology, without remuneration, August 1, 1966.

Bruce M. Van Horn, M.D., Clinical Instructor in Pathology, without remuneration, September 1, 1966.

Wes A. Whittlesey, M.D., Clinical Instructor in Pediatrics, without remuneration, September 1, 1966.

Mete Metin Yurdakul, M.D., Clinical Assistant in Anesthesiology, \$383.33 per month, August 1, 1966.

Stephen Tkach, M.D., Clinical Assistant in Orthopedic Surgery, without remuneration, September 1, 1966.

Chin Yong Chung, M.D., Clinical Assistant in Pediatrics (Fellow in Pediatrics Cardiology), \$541.66 per month, July 1, 1966.

Sofia Montilla Franco, M.D., Clinical Assistant in Pediatrics (Research Fellow in Infectious Diseases), \$500 per month, July 1, 1966.

Manuel S. Linsres, M.D., Clinical Assistant in Pediatrics (Research Fellow in Infectious Diseases), \$500 per month, July 1, 1966.

Joseph Neeman, M.D., Clinical Assistant in Pediatrics (Research Fellow in Endocrinology and Metabolism), \$541.66 per month, July 1, 1966.

Clarence Lea DeLaney, M.D., Clinical Assistant in Radiology, without remuneration, August 1, 1966.

Gary Gene Evans, M.D., Clinical Assistant in Radiology, without remuneration, August 1, 1966.

John T. Forsythe, M.D., Clinical Assistant in Radiology, without remuneration, August 1, 1966.

George H. Ladd, M.D., Clinical Assistant in Radiology, without remuneration, August 1, 1966.

Lloyd E. Rader, Jr., M.D., Clinical Assistant in Surgery, without remuneration, August 1, 1966.

Evangeline Gail Greer, D.D.S., Clinical Assistant in Dental Surgery, Department of Surgery, without remuneration, September 1, 1966.

Isao Miwa, M.D., Research Associate in Pharmacology, \$583.33 per month, July 1, 1966.

CHANGES:

John P. Colmore, M.D., Professor of Medicine and of Pharmacology, salary changed from \$2,041.65 to \$1,907.56 per month, August 1, 1966.

Robert Edelberg, Ph.D., Professor of Psychophysiotherapy in Psychiatry, salary increased from \$779.16 to \$833.35 per month, July 1, 1966.

Reagan H. Bradford, M.D., Ph.D., title changed from Associate Professor and Vice-Chairman of Biochemistry to Associate Professor of Biochemistry, salary changed from \$367 per month to no salary, September 1, 1966.

Howard B. Ruhm, Ph.D., Associate Professor of Audiology in Communication Disorders and Director of Audiological Research in Speech and Hearing Center, salary changed from -0- to \$1,708.33 per month, June 1, 1966.

Harold G. Muchmore, M.D., Associate Professor of Medicine and of Microbiology, salary changed from \$708.33 to \$833.33 per month, August 1, 1966.

Frances G. Felton, Ph.D., Associate Professor of Laboratory Medicine and of Microbiology, salary increased from \$541.66 to \$708.32 per month, August 1, 1966.

John R. Sokatch, Ph.D., Associate Professor of Research Microbiology and of Biochemistry, Salary increased from \$1,000 to \$1,208.33 per month, September 1, 1966.

Floyd W. Emanuel, Ph.D., Coordinator of Cleft Palate Clinic, Speech and Hearing Center, and Assistant Professor of Communication Disorders, salary changed from \$1,133.32 to \$1,183.32 per month, July 1, 1966.

Robert L. Olson, M.D., Assistant Professor of Dermatology, salary changed from \$1,194.99 to \$1,254.66 per month, August 1, 1966.

Leonard Eddy, M.L.S., Assistant Professor of Medical Library Science, salary changed from \$833.33 to \$1,374.99 per month, September 1, 1966.

Robert LeRoy Carpenter, M.D., Assistant Professor of Medicine and of Preventive Medicine and Public Health and of Research Microbiology, salary changed from no salary to \$93.33 per month, July 1, 1966.

L. Clarke Stout, M.D., Assistant Professor of Medicine, salary increased from \$1,041.66 to \$1,208.34 per month, September 1, 1966.

Glenn S. Bulmer, Ph.D., Assistant Professor and Research Laboratory Inspector of Microbiology, salary changed from \$1,352.77 to \$1,083.33 per month, August 1, 1966.

Thomas C. Points, M.D., Ph.D., Assistant Professor of Preventive Medicine and Public Health, salary changed from \$1,500 to \$1,750 per month, August 1, 1966.

Robert A. Lindeman, M.D., Assistant Professor of Preventive Medicine and Public Health, salary changed from \$1,441.66 to \$1,333.32 per month, July 1, 1966.

Lazar John Greenfield, M.D., Assistant Professor of Surgery (Acting Chief, VA Surgical Service), salary changed from \$606.75 to \$624.31 per month, August 1, 1966.

John M. Kalbfleisch, M.D., promoted from Instructor to Assistant Professor of Medicine, September 1, 1966.

Adrian Kyriakopoulos, M.D., Instructor in Medicine, salary changed to \$800 per month (omitted from 1966-67 budget through error), July 1, 1966.

Fay K. Myers, M.D., Instructor in Medicine, salary changed from no salary to \$134.09 per month, August 1, 1966 to July 1, 1967.

Charles W. Robinson, Jr., M.D., Instructor in Medicine and Assistant Professor of Pharmacology, salary changed from \$875 per month to no remuneration, July 1, 1966.

Lawrence A. Chitwood, Ph.D., Instructor in Pediatrics, salary changed from \$125.00 to \$833.33 per month, August 1, 1966.

Linda Resnick, B.S., Instructor in Physical Therapy, salary changed from \$300 to \$335 per month, September 1, 1966.

Thomas K. Shires, Ph.D., Research Instructor in Urology and in Anatomy, salary increased from \$666.66 to \$708.33 per month, August 1, 1966.

Lillian N. Zimmerman, M.S.W., Clinical Assistant in Psychiatric Social Work in Psychiatry, salary changed from \$650.00 to \$691.66 per month, August 1, 1966.

Jack E. Tompkins, M.S., Research Associate in Medicine, salary changed from \$833.33 to \$1,000.00 per month, September 1, 1966.

Theresa M. Costiloe, M.S., Research Associate in Pediatrics (Clinical Psychologist), salary changed from \$475 to \$450 per month, July 1, 1966.

Sherrod D. Morehead, Ph.D., Research Associate in Preventive Medicine and Public Health; given additional title of Instructor in Medical Psychology in Psychiatry, salary changed from \$375.00 to \$583.33 per month, July 1, 1966.

C. V. Ramana, Research Associate in Psychiatry, salary changed from \$416.67 to \$666.66 per month, August 1, 1966.

TERMINATIONS:

Marvin R. Shetlar, Ph.D., Professor of Biochemistry, August 31, 1966.

Muzafer Sherif, Ph.D., Consultant Professor of Social Psychology in Psychiatry, August 31, 1966.

Yu-Teh Li, Ph.D., Assistant Professor of Research Biochemistry, September 30, 1966.

Paul W. Wigler, Ph.D., Assistant Professor of Research Biochemistry, July 31, 1966.

Stephen W. Thompson, M.D., Assistant Professor of Medicine and of Psychiatry, Head, Division of Neurology in Medicine, June 15, 1966.

Frances P. Lindner, M.S.N., Visiting Assistant Professor of Nursing, August 13, 1966.

William Francis O'Conner, Ph.D., Adjunct Assistant Professor of Research Psychology in Psychiatry, August 31, 1966.

Thomas S. Ray, Ph.D., Assistant Professor of Psychology in Psychiatry, August 31, 1966.

Carolyn Wood Sherif, Ph.D., Consultant Assistant Professor of Social Psychology in Psychiatry, August 31, 1966.

Arthur Wayne Viney, Ph.D., Adjunct Assistant Professor of Medical Psychology in Psychiatry, August 31, 1966.

Ananta Songseng, M.D., Assistant Professor of Radiology, August 12, 1966.

John T. Jiroch, M.D., Clinical Instructor in Ophthalmology, July 31, 1966.

Darvin W. Smith, M.D., Clinical Assistant (Fellow) in Medicine, August 5, 1966.

Takashi Kusakari, M.D., Research Associate in Pharmacology, August 31, 1966.

John A. Foster, M.S., Research Associate in Psychiatry, June 30, 1966.

President Cross reported that Dr. Lynn C. Barnes of Nowata has asked to be relieved of his preceptorship effective immediately. Dr. Barnes is moving from the state. President Cross recommended the appointment of Dr. John R. Reid, who is at the present time an Associate Preceptor at Nowata, as Preceptor. If approved, Dr. Reid's appointment would be effective immediately and continue through June, 1967.

Approved on motion by Regent Davidson.

President Cross reported the death of Robert T. Sturm, M.D., Assistant Professor of Surgery, on July 27, 1966.

Dean Dennis retired from the meeting.

FACULTY

LEAVE OF ABSENCE:

Glenn C. Couch, Dean, University College, sick leave of absence with full pay, August 1 to November 1, 1966.

APPOINTMENTS:

David E. Shirley, Visiting Professor of Economics, part time, September 1, 1966 to July 1, 1967. Paid by School and Community Services.

George Sibley Corfield, Visiting Professor of Geography, \$9,000 for 9 months, September 1, 1966 to June 1, 1967.

Jack Harrold, Visiting Professor of Music, \$9,156 for 9 months, September 1, 1966.

Harald F. K. Zingl, Ph.D., Visiting Professor of Physics, \$15,000 for 12 months, September 1, 1966.

William R. Hood, reappointed Visiting Professor of Psychology and Acting Director of Institute of Group Relations, \$11,964 for 9 months, September 1, 1966 to June 1, 1967.

Yosio Nakamura, reappointed Visiting Associate Professor of Geophysics, School of Geology and Geophysics, without salary, part time, September 1, 1966 to June 1, 1967.

Ervin Joseph Bell, Assistant Professor of Architecture, \$8,520 for 9 months, September 1, 1966.

Louis O. Roberts, Assistant Professor of Architecture, \$7,920 for 9 months, September 1, 1966.

William Michael Lorkovic, Visiting Assistant Professor of Chemical Engineering and Material Sciences, \$4,470 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Kenneth E. Starling, Ph.D., Visiting Assistant Professor of Chemical Engineering and Materials Science, \$11,124 for 9 months, September 1, 1966.

Hon Sice Cey, Ph.D., Visiting Assistant Professor of Civil Engineering, \$3,420 for 42 months. September 1, 1966.

Richard Edward Sternlof, Ph.D., Adjunct Assistant Professor of Education, no salary, September 1, 1966.

Ralph C. Martin, Assistant Professor of Engineering, 1/4 time, no salary, September 1, 1966.

Martin Lobel, Assistant Professor of Law, \$10,860 for 9 months, September 1, 1966.

Julien Wood, Assistant Professor of Law, \$11,400 for 9 months, September 1, 1966.

C. Carter Nice, Assistant Professor of Music, \$7,920 for 9 months, September 1, 1966.

John L. Dayries, Assistant Professor of Physical Education, \$8,316 for 9 months, September 1, 1966.

Rita L. Allis, reappointed Assistant Professor of Social Work, \$9,852 for 12 months, July 1, 1966 to July 1, 1967. NIMH Training Grant.

Frank Robert Blosser, Jr., reappointed Assistant Professor of Social Work, \$9,384 for 12 months, July 1, 1966 to July 1, 1967. NIMH Training Grant.

Augustus D'Aloise, reappointed Assistant Professor of Social Work, \$9,852 for 12 months, July 1, 1966 to July 1, 1967. NIMH Training Grant.

Charles Ross Dunbar, reappointed Assistant Professor of Social Work, \$8,940 for 12 months, July 1, 1966 to July 1, 1967. NIMH Training Grant.

Robert Eugene Kelley, reappointed Assistant Professor of Social Work, \$9,156 for 12 months, July 1, 1966 to July 1, 1967. Department of Public Welfare.

Ruby L. Little, reappointed Assistant Professor of Social Work, \$9,384 for 12 months, July 1, 1966 to July 1, 1967. NIMH Training Grant.

L. Isabel McCabe, reappointed Assistant Professor of Social Work, \$9,156 for 12 months, July 1, 1966 to July 1, 1967. Department of Public Welfare.

Marian Agnes Powell, reappointed Assistant Professor of Social Work, \$9,156 for 12 months, July 1, 1966 to July 1, 1967. Department of Public Welfare.

Norris L. Smith, reappointed Assistant Professor of Social Work, \$9,156 for 12 months, July 1, 1966 to July 1, 1967. Department of Public Welfare.

Marjorie B. Wright, Assistant Professor of Social Work, \$9,156 for 12 months, September 1, 1966 to July 1, 1967. Department of Public Welfare.

Shirley Norene Pelley, Librarian PII, University Libraries, \$6,516 for 12 months, September 1, 1966.

Alexander Liebling, Special Instructor in Accounting, \$3,216 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Kenneth E. Reynolds, Special Instructor in Accounting, \$2,814 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966 to June 1, 1967.

W. C. Crisman, Adjunct Instructor in Aerospace and Mechanical Engineering, no salary, July 1, 1966.

Lois Casbeer Brandt, Special Instructor in Botany and Microbiology, \$6,060 for 9 months, September 1, 1966.

Sabry M. Kamhawy, Special Instructor in Chemistry, \$2,500 for 4½ months, September 1, 1966.

Orvis Leon Rigsby, Jr., Instructor in Drama, Supervisor and Stage Manager, Holmberg Hall, \$5,772 for 9 months, September 1, 1966.

Ray Dee Bernardi, Special Instructor in Education, \$2,886 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Leonard Glenn Smith, Special Instructor in Education, \$5,496 for 9 months, September 1, 1966.

Elmer Gene Talbert, Special Instructor in Education, \$4,620 for 9 months, September 1, 1966.

John E. Vogt, Special Instructor in Education, \$4,620 for 9 months, September 1, 1966.

Marian Maxine Works, Special Instructor in Education, \$5,496 for 9 months, September 1, 1966.

Rosentene B. Purnell, Special Instructor in English, \$3,258 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Edward D. Dolly, Special Instructor in Geology and Geophysics, \$2,814 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Barbara J. Cox, Special Instructor in Home Economics and University School, \$6,516 for 9 months, September 1, 1966.

Kathleen Isabel Kelley, Instructor in Home Economics, \$7,008 for 9 months, September 1, 1966.

Joe W. Foster, Instructor in Industrial Engineering, \$8,112 for 9 months, September 1, 1966.

Elmer Z. Million, Instructor in Industrial Engineering, \$4,056 for 4½ months, September 1, 1966.

Zouqul Hussain Chowdhury, Special Instructor in Mathematics, \$2,500 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966 to June 1, 1967.

Walter D. Bach, Jr., Special Instructor in Meteorology, \$703.50 for 4½ months, 1/4 time, September 1, 1966.

Stanley L. Barnes, Instructor in Meteorology, \$2,691 for 9 months, 3/8 time, September 1, 1966 to June 1, 1967.

Samuel J. Hall, Instructor in Meteorology, \$1,710 for 9 months, 1/4 time, September 1, 1966 to June 1, 1967.

Victor S. Whitehead, Instructor in Meteorology, \$2,766 for 9 months, 3/8 time, September 1, 1966 to June 1, 1967.

Virginia Louise Brigden, Special Instructor in Social Work, no salary, September 1, 1966.

Evangeline Canada Freemon, Special Instructor in Social Work, no salary, September 1, 1966.

Inez Bever Price, Special Instructor in Social Work, no salary, September 1, 1966.

Marian M. Smalley, Special Instructor in Social Work, no salary, September 1, 1966.

Margaret Sydney Sternberg, Special Instructor in Social Work, no salary, September 1, 1966.

Clara Tatge, Special Instructor in Social Work, no salary, September 1, 1966.

Robert Louis Millier, Special Instructor in Speech, \$2,000 for 9 months, 1/4 time, September 1, 1966 to June 1, 1967. Speech and Hearing Grant.

Jean Frances Collier, Special Instructor, University School, \$5,772 for 9 months, September 1, 1966.

Jill Archer Savage, Special Instructor, University School, \$4,740 for 9 months, September 1, 1966.

Marjorie Greer, Special Instructor in Zoology, \$650 for 4½ months, part time. September 1, 1966.

Clara Julia Bethancourt, Language Instructor, Puerto Rico Peace Corps Project, July 10 to November 1, 1966. Paid by special payment.

Anita Kaufman, Language Instructor, Puerto Rico Peace Corps Project, July 5 to November 1, 1966. Paid by special payment.

Robert Leon Malka, French Instructor, El Salvador Peace Corps Project, June 30 to November 1, 1966. Paid by special payment.

Lynda Margaret Harris, Teaching Assistant in Chemistry, \$400 for 42 months, 1/4 time. September 1, 1966.

Philip R. Rope, Teaching Assistant in Drama, \$1,000 for 9 months, 1/4 time, September 1, 1966.

CHANGES:

Leon S. Ciereszko, Professor of Chemistry; appointed Director, National Heart Institute Training Grant, \$460 per month, September 1, 1966 to June 1, 1967.

Arthur Henry DeRosier, Associate Professor of History; appointed Assistant Dean, Graduate College, salary increased from \$8,724 for 9 months to \$12,552 for 12 months, September 1, 1966.

John K. Greer, title changed from /ssistant Director, Biological Station, to Acting Director, Stovall Museum, September 1, 1966. Retains title of Assistant Professor of Zoology.

Bess B. Hood, title changed from Librarian PI to Librarian PII, salary increased from \$3,030 for 12 months, 1/2 time, to \$6,060 for 12 months, full time, September 1, 1966.

Cluff E. Hopla, Professor of Zoology, salary changed from \$17,600 for 12 months to \$14,880 for 9 months, September 1, 1966.

Robert A. Howard, Professor of Physics, salary changed from \$17,200 for 12 months to \$14,520 for 9 months, September 1, 1966.

Harold V. Huneke, Associate Professor of Mathematics; given additional title of Associate Professor of Education, September 1, 1966.

Samuel Olkinetzky, Associate Professor of Art and Director of Art Museum, salary changed from \$9,852 for 9 months to \$12,864 for 12 months, September 1, 1966.

Eardean Rector, Librarian PI, salary increased from \$6,060 to \$6,516 for 12 months, July 1, 1966.

Tommy Lee Rowland, title changed from Graduate Assistant to Special Instructor in Geology and Geophysics, salary increased from \$2,000 to \$2,814 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Walter F. Scheffer, Professor of Political Science; given additional title of Director of Graduate Program in Public Administration, September 1, 1966.

Francis John Schmitz, Assistant Professor of Chemistry; appointed Staff Associate, National Heart Institute Training Grant, \$287.33 per month, September 1, 1966 to July 1, 1967.

Mohamed Ismail Siddiqi, Visiting Associate Professor of Geography, salary increased from \$5,265 to \$5,628 for 9 months, September 1, 1966.

Stephen M. Sutherland, Associate Professor of Geography; appointed Assistant Dean of University College, September 1, 1966.

Gerald Tuma, David Ross Boyd Professor of Electrical Engineering; appointed Acting Director of Electrical Engineering, June 1, 1966.

Chester Glenn Twitchell, title changed from Graduate Assistant to Teaching Assistant in Zoology, salary increased from \$2,000 to \$2,550 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Alfred John Weinheimer, Professor of Chemistry; appointed Staff Associate, National Heart Institute Training Grant, \$348.66 per month, September 1, 1966 to July 1, 1967.

RESIGNATIONS:

Carolyn E. Bamford, Special Instructor, University School, September 1, 1966.

Marion T. Hall, Professor of Botany and Director of Stovall Museum, September 1, 1966.

Katherine K. Hudson, Special Instructor in Social Work, July 1, 1966.

Barbara Brice Hutchinson, Assistant Professor of Speech, September 1, 1966.

Marc Q. Jacobs, Instructor in Mathematics, August 1, 1966.

Roberta B. Kauskay, Librarian PII, University Libraries, August 31, 1966.

Frank J. Kern, Instructor in Electrical Engineering, August 1, 1966.

Dolly Ann Moseley, Special Instructor in Education, September 1, 1966.

Thomas S. Ray, Adjunct Assistant Professor of Psychology and Practicum Supervisor, Psychological Clinic, September 1, 1966.

Frank Pearson, Special Instructor in Education, September 1, 1966.

Seward E. Robb, Associate Professor of Management, September 1, 1966.

Paul E. Roby, Assistant Professor of Music, June 1, 1966.

Muzafer Sherif, Research Professor of Psychology, Director of Institute of Group Relations, September 1, 1966.

Gloria Ann Slaughter, Librarian PII, University Libraries, September 1, 1966.

Richard G. Snyder, Adjunct Associate Professor of Anthropology, September 1, 1966.

Joan Sutherland, Special Instructor in Geography, September 1, 1966.

Maxwell J. Wilcomb, Jr., Associate Professor of Civil Engineering, September 1, 1966.

President Cross recommended also the appointment of Professor Ansel H. Resler as Acting Chairman of the Department of Speech for the fall semester 1966-67 while Professor Nebergall is on leave of absence.

Approved on motion by Regent Houchin-

President Cross reported the death of Dewey L. Barnes, Professor Emeritus of Accounting, on August 22, 1966.

GRADUATE ASSISTANTS

APPOINTMENTS:

Gary L. McConnell, Accounting, \$1,800 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Mary L. Elliott, Administrative Services, \$2,200 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Robert J. Reed, School of Art, \$2,000 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

William John Hess, Biological Survey, \$2,200 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Terry P. Harrison, Botany and Microbiology, \$2,000 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Sandra K. Wright, Botany and Microbiology, \$2,200 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Riad N. Rayes, Bureau of Government Research, \$2,000 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

K. Wiley Cox, Chemical Engineering and Materials Science, \$2,400 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Wendell L. Pieper, Chemical Engineering and Materials Science, \$2,400 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Don Baker, Chemistry, \$2,100 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Dan C. Boatwright, Chemistry, \$2,100 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Venghout Cheam, Chemistry, \$2,100 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Darrell Ray Cornell, Chemistry, \$2,100 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

George Alton Dunaway, Chemistry, \$2,100 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Gary John Ferb, Chemistry, \$2,100 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Lloyd T. Innerarity, Chemistry, \$2,100 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Monics A. Jorque, Chemistry, \$2,200 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Shingo Kajinami, Chemistry, \$2,100 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Kyu C. Kim, Chemistry, \$2,100 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Billy J. Ladd, Chemistry, \$2,100 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Lyman C. Lewis, Chemistry, \$2,500 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Ronald L. Lynch, Chemistry, \$2,300 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Ronald A. Martin, Chemistry, \$2,300 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Richard G. Parenti, Chemistry, \$2,100 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Abdul H. Qazi, Chemistry, \$2,100 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Theresa Mary Rose, Chemistry, \$2,100 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Peter Joseph Russo, Chemistry, \$2,100 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Joyce M. Sims, Chemistry, \$2,100 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Robert L. Spraggins, Chemistry, \$2,100 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

S. R. Srinivasan, Chemistry, \$2,100 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Bariah H. Taha, Chemistry, \$2,100 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Clinton Eugene Tatsch, Chemistry, \$2,100 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Rodger D. Thigpen, Chemistry, \$2,100 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Robert Leo Tiner, Chemistry, \$2,400 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Robert G. Todd, Chemistry, \$2,100 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Carl Clement Zinsser, Chemistry, \$2,300 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

John K-M Cheng, Civil Engineering and Environmental Sciences, \$2,000 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Robert C. Dudley, Jr., Civil Engineering and Environmental Sciences, \$2,000 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Joe J. Sestak, Civil Engineering and Environmental Sciences, \$2,000 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Mikel Vincent Ary, Classics, \$1,800 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Jean R. Herrick, Classics, \$1,800 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Su Ann Weinstein, Classics, \$1,800 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Lucretia Chapman, Drama, \$2,000 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Richard Keith Armey, Economics, \$2,200 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Gary T. Barnes, Economics, \$550 for 4½ months, 1/4 time, September 1, 1966. Paid by School and Community Services.

Damian Thomas Gullo, Economics, \$2,200 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Walter Dearby Johnson, Economics, \$1,100 for 9 months, 1/4 time, September 1, 1966.

Eliahu Kreis, Economics, \$2,200 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Charles G. Leathers, Economics, \$3,300 for 9 months, 3/4 time, September 1, 1966.

Gene Lohrke, Economics, \$2,200 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

David E. Ramsett, Economics, \$1,100 for 9 months, 1/4 time, September 1, 1966.

Bruce N. Robinson, Economics, \$1,100 for 9 months, 1/4 time, September 1, 1966.

Chen Sun, Economics, \$1,100 for 9 months, 1/4 time, September 1, 1966.

Gordon E. Von Stroh, Economics, \$3,300 for 9 months, 3/4 time, September 1, 1966.

Kenneth Richard White, Economics, \$2,200 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Lawrence W. Wright, Economics, \$1,100 for 9 months, 1/4 time, September 1, 1966.

Effie Adams, Education, \$2,200 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Melvyn Arnold Hollander, Education, \$2,200 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Glen D. Mills, Education, \$2,200 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Mary Beth Penney, Education, \$2,200 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Jerry Allen Rainwater, Education, \$2,200 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Charles Wesley Alworth, Electrical Engineering, \$2,400 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Theodore A. Blaske, Electrical Engineering, \$2,400 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Richard Grant Bundy, English, \$2,000 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Dale W. Davis, English, \$2,200 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Donald David Duffy, English, \$2,200 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Dorothy Louise Reedy Foster, English, \$2,200 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Joyce Ann Guyer, English, \$2,000 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Ronnie James Johns, English, \$2,200 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Barbara Stern Kinnie, English, \$2,000 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Rosetta Faye May, English, \$2,200 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Kevin Barry McKiernan, English, \$2,000 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Eiko T. Miller, English, \$1,100 for 9 months, 1/4 time, September 1, 1966.

Marjorie B. Orr, English, \$2,000 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Lee Shahan, English, \$2,000 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

James Edward Stewart, English, \$2,200 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Dale Michael Lewison, Geography, \$2,000 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

James Weeks Tiller, Jr., Geography, \$2,120 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Harry E. Brookby, Geology, \$1,900 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Norman Jensen Smith, Jr., Geology, \$2,100 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

David C. Chance, Guidance Service, \$2,400 for 12 months, 1/2 time, August 1, 1966 to September 1, 1967.

Charles B. Head, Guidance Service, \$2,400 for 12 months, 1/2 time, August 1, 1966 to September 1, 1967.

Steven L. Weiss, Guidance Service, \$2,400 for 12 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966 to September 1, 1967.

Manohar D. Nasta, Industrial Engineering, \$2,400 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Bruce H. Hinson, Journalism, \$450 for 4½ months, 1/4 time, September 1, 1966.

Franklin I. Presson, Journalism, \$450 for 42 months, 1/4 time, January 16, 1967.

Ronald Guy Greenwood, Management, \$2,200 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Edward N. Strader, Management, \$2,200 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Norish Lee Adams, Mathematics, \$1,900 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Sterlin Nichols Adams, Mathematics, \$2,100 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Clarence Herbert Best, Mathematics, \$2,200 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Donald Robert Groff, Mathematics, \$2,000 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Louis Rittenhouse Hird, Mathematics, \$2,000 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

C. Leon Rauch, Mathematics, \$2,100 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Thomas Jay Sanders, Mathematics, \$1,800 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Bruce C. Renneke, Meteorology, \$2,200 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Hildegund Meis, Modern Languages, \$2,200 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Brishkai Waziri Rothenberger, Modern Languages, \$2,000 for 9 months, 1/2 time. September 1, 1966.

Richard Michael Gennings, Oklahoma Biological Survey, \$2,400 for 12 months, 1/2 time, June 1, 1966 to June 1, 1967.

James Burr Mense, Oklahoma Biological Survey, \$2,400 for 12 months, 1/2 time, June 1, 1966 to June 1, 1967.

John R. Couch, Jr., Philosophy, \$1,200 for 9 months, 1/4 time, September 1, 1966.

Gilbert L. Druin, Philosophy, \$1,592.50 for 9 months, 3/8 time, September 1, 1966.

Alvin E. Keaton, Philosophy, \$1,592.50 for 9 months, 3/8 time, September 1, 1966.

John M. Marshall, Philosophy, \$1,200 for 9 months, 1/4 time, September 1, 1966.

Thomas P. Solon, Philosophy, \$1,200 for 9 months, 1/4 time, September 1, 1966.

Raymond Clyde Thurmond, Physical Education, \$2,400 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Roger Nathaniel Blais, Physics, \$2,300 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Charles Clifford Habeger, Jr., Physics, \$2,300 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

James Albert Klosterbuer, Physics, \$2,300 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

William Charles Paske, Physics, \$2,300 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Ali Barzegar, Political Science, \$2,000 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

David Foster Hales, Political Science, \$1,800 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Orlando M. Hernando, Political Science, \$2,000 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Lawrence E. Hough, Political Science, \$2,000 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Arnold Kaufman, Political Science, \$2,000 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Carolyn A. Leigh, Political Science, \$1,800 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Delbert J. Ringquist, Political Science, \$1,800 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Jung Karp Suhr, Political Science, \$2,000 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Jane R. Todd, Political Science, \$1,800 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Sandra Jean Wurth, Political Science, \$2,000 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Colin H. Frank, Psychology, \$2,000 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

J. Patrick Hart, Psychology, \$2,000 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Eugene Ellsworth Landy, Psychology, \$2,000 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

David William Pearson, Psychology, \$2,200 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

James Roger Benham, Sociology, \$1,800 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Robert Steven Ambler, Speech, \$2,000 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Dawn Elsine Bartels, Speech, \$2,000 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Johnny Benton, Speech, \$2,200 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Marylene Sue Dennis, Speech, \$2,000 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Dorothy Jane Evridge, Speech, \$2,200 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Mary Lee Giardina, Speech, \$2,200 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Linda Rose Mizer, Speech, \$2,000 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Gary Keith Rayburn, Speech, \$2,000 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Jim Dale Schuler, Speech, \$2,000 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Erma LaDoris Stewart, Speech, \$2,000 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

James Tracy Tresner, II, Speech, \$2,000 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Peggy LaFern Winingham, Speech, \$2,000 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Jon Charles Harshaw, University Theatre Playhouse, \$1,000 for 9 months, 1/4 time, September 1, 1966.

David H. Young, University Theatre Playhouse, \$2,000 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Harold Lee Cleveland, Zoology, \$2,250 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Hamid Majid Ghani, Zoology, \$1,950 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Thomas W. Haislip, Jr., Zoology, \$1,950 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

Virginia Inez Jackson, Zoology, \$1,950 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

William B. Preston, Zoology, \$2,250 for 9 months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

CHANGES:

Ruth Ann Fisher, Mathematics, salary changed from \$2,000 for 9 months, 1/2 time, to \$1,000 for 9 months, 1/4 time, September 1, 1966.

Jean G. Holloway, Sociology, salary changed from \$900 for 9 months, 1/4 time, to \$1,000 for 4½ months, 1/2 time, September 1, 1966.

RESIGNATIONS:

Udo Blum, Botany and Microbiology, declined to accept 1966-67 appointment.

Janice E. Million, Education, declined to accept 1966-67 appointment.

Johnny Leon McDonald, English, declined to accept 1966-67 appointment.

Lahoma Pope Smith, English, declined to accept 1966-67 appointment.

Jenny Len Walker, English, declined to accept 1966-67 appointment.

Arvella E. Hertje, Modern Languages, declined to accept 1966-67 appointment.

Edward R. Ellois, Jr., Southwest Center for Human Relations Studies, August 16, 1966.

Alan C. Butler, Psychology, declined to accept 1966-67 appointment.

James Charles Duffy, Psychology, declined to accept 1966-67 appointment.

Martin Neal Resnick, Guidance Service, September 1, 1966.

Phillip L. Hampton, Zoology, declined to accept 1966-67 appointment.

Approved on motion by Regent Little.

President Cross recommended approval of the salary increases indicated for the graduate assistants and teaching assistants shown below, effective September 1, 1966:

Name	Present Salary	Recommended Salary
Art		
Patricia M. Johns	\$1,800	\$2,000
Electrical Engineering		
Thomas D. Neier, Jr. Javad M. Zoroofchi	2,200 2,200	2,400 2,400
Javad W. SolooiGui	2,200	2,400
English		
Sylvia Aday	1,800	2,000
Mershall Basham	2,250	2,450
Joseph Darrell Beck	1,800	2,000
Terry Britton	1,800	2,000
Robert Brown	2,000	2,200
Shirley Butcher	1,800	2,000
Carl Carter	1,800	2,000
Janet Constantinides	2,000	2,200
Paul Cox	3,000	3,200
Michael Cross	1,800	2,000
Howard Faulkner	1,800	2,000
Clyde Fixmer	3,000	3,200
Elaine Ginsberg	2,000	2,200
Bernard Glassman	1,800	2,000
Robert Green	3,000	3,200
Charles Hembree	2,000	2,200
Jerry Holt	2,500	2,700
Mary Keaton	2,000	2,200
Mark Kobernick	2,000	2,200
Nancy Lewis Irelan	4,000	4,200
Robert Lindsey	2,250	2,450
James Lonquest	4,000	4,200
Linda Miller	1,800	2,000
Judith Moore	2,250	2,450
Sharron Muskrat	1,800	2,000

Mildred Naberhaus	\$2,000	\$2,200
Charles Napravnik	2,000	2,200
Albert Nicolai	2,000	2,200
Lewis Parkhill	1,800	2,000
Emmet Phillips	2,000	2,200
Charles Poston	3,000	3,200
David Rowland	1,800	2,000
William Robert	2,000	2,200
Jerry Rutledge	2,500	2,700
Carroll Schoenewolf	2,000	2,200
James Schroeder	2,500	2,700
Carl Sennhenn	4,000	4,200
Nancy Skinner	2,500	2,700
Gloria Slaughter	2,000	2,200
Barbara Slavick	1,800	2,000
Myrna Smart	1,800	2,000
Gary Stringer	2,000	2,200
Larry Taylor	3,000	3,200
Mary Wagoner	2,000	2,200
Lynne Washbourne	1,800	2,000
Karen Wells	1,800	2,000
Gaography		
Jerome F. Coling	2,000	2,200
Terry W. Crown	1,800	2,000
Richard Allan Outwater	1,800	2,000
Ralph Douglas Pierce	2,000	2,200
Don R. Youts	1,800	2,000
Geology and Geophysics		
Hashim Al-Khersan	2,000	2,100
Abdolhossein Baharloui	2,100	2,200
Orville Roger Berg	1,000	1,100
Philip Jan Cannon	1,900	2,000
Betty Joan Echols	2,000	2,200
Robert W. Ganser	1,800	1,900
Bruce N. Haugh	1,800	1,900
Kenneth Lance Lowe	1,900	2,000
Journalism		
Ronald E. Keener	450	500
Robert N. Chaddock	900	990
Modern Languages		
Elizabeth A. Benedict	2,000	2,200

Carol Anne Breneman	\$1,800	\$2,00 0
John Catsoris	1,800	2,000
Glenda P. Chapelle	1,800	2,000
Rose Ellen Chace	1,800	2,000
Barbara Cousins	2,000	2,200
Paul D. Dooley	2,000	2,200
Ralph D. Cole	2,000	2,200
Patrick W. Ehrig	1,800	2,000
Ray Thomas Fullerton	2,000	2,200
Barbara B. Gatewood	1,800	2,000
Edwin Goering	1,800	2,000
Linda E. Hammons	1,800	2,000
Leslie D. Imboden	1,800	2,000
Jeanette B. LeHew	1,800	2,000
Janet R. Littlefield	1,800	2,000
James Robert Madson	1,800	2,000
Rosemarie G. Lones	2,000	2,200
Grace E. Martinez	2,000	2,200
John R. McCain	2,000	2,200
Dana Patricia Nismi	1,800	2,000
Stephen C. Palady	1,800	2,000
Malcolm H. Patterson	1,800	2,000
June M. Pitman	1,800	2,000
Charles A. Pond	900	1,000
Ingrid H. Poole	1,800	2,000
Renate E. Pore	1,800	2,000
Tommie S. Ragsdale	1,800	2,000
William J. Ray	1,800	2,000
Tomas Rivera	2,000	2,200
Francisco Rios	1,000	1,100
Hilda Vivas Salas	1,800	2,000
Cruz M. Sanches	1,800	2,000
Donna E. Severance	1,800	2,000
Faye L. Shinn	1,800	2,000
Maaris Vlach	2,000	2,200
Harry S. Wohlert	1,800	2,000
William R. Womack	1,800	2,000
Caroline Young	2,000	2,200
Jean C. Jacquet	2,000	2,200
Peter F. Wuestum	2,000	2,200
Physical Education		
William H. Stoneman	1,800	2,000
Psychology		
Vincent F. Berger	1,800	2,000
Robert I. Gordon	1,800	2,200
David C. Munz	1,800	2,000
·	-y	

Richard L. Stieber Joan Rodman Wolfgang	\$ 900 1,800	\$1,000 2,000
Zoology		
Troy W. Cole Dale Marcellini Dan Penney Kenneth Heacock Martha Whitson Clark Beasley Roy D. Ikenberry Barbara A. Bailey Merrill G. McHenry Thomas E. Swiatek Michael Eoff William G. Henderson John Landolt David Pritchard	2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 1,800 1,800 1,800	2,250 2,250 2,250 2,250 2,250 2,250 2,250 2,250 2,250 2,250 1,950 1,950 1,950 1,950
Charles Taber James F. Mason Dennise Richardson Devoria A. Rowland Jan F. Sassaman	1,800 1,800 1,800 1,800 1,800	1,950 1,950 1,950 1,950 1,950

Approved on motion by Regent Davies.

President Cross recommended approval of the appointment of the following staff and faculty members to the position indicated in each case in the Stovall Museum for the period July 1, 1966 to July 1, 1967:

Earth Sciences Division

Head Curator and Curator of Vertebrate Paleontology	Dr. David B. Kitts
Curator of Invertebrate Paleontology	Dr. P. K. Sutherland
Curator of Mineralogy	Dr. Elmer L. Lucas
Curator of Astronomy	Balfour S. Whitney

Life Sciences Division

Head Curator and Curator of Birds	Dr. George M. Sutton
Curator of Parasites	Dr. J. Teague Self
Curator of Amphibians	Dr. Arthur N. Bragg

Curator of Invertebrates Curator of Insects Curator of Reptiles Research Associate

Research Associate

Curator of Mammals Curator of Fishes

Botany Department Head Curator

Social Sciences Division

Anthropology Department

Head Curator and Curator of Archeology
Research Associate in Archeology
Curator of Ethnology
Honorary Research Associate of American
Indian Art
Museum Associate in Asian Studies
Consultant in Linguistics

Classical Art and Archeology Department Head Curator of Classical Art and Archeology

History Department Head Curator Consultant

Textile Department
Head Curator of American Textiles

Museum Administration Division

Museum Associate Curator Emeritus, Earth Science Division Curator Emeritus of American Indian Assistant Director Emeritus

Approved on motion by Regent Sparks.

ADMINISTRATIVE AND PROFESSIONAL

LEAVE OF ABSENCE WITHOUT PAY:

Robert B. Jones, Extension Specialist II, School and Community Services, extended from November 1, 1966 to November 1, 1967.

Dr. Harley P. Brown Dr. Cluff E. Hopla Dr. Charles C. Carpenter

Dr. G. A. Moore

(Oklahoma State University)

Mr. John S. Tomer (Tulsa, Oklahoma) Dr. John K. Greer Dr. Carl D. Riggs

Dr. George J. Goodman

Dr. Robert E. Bell Dr. Sherman P. Lawton Dr. A. F. Ricciardelli

Dr. O. B. Jacobson Dr. Percy W. Buchanan Dr. William E. Bittle

Ian John Thomson

Dr. Arrell M. Gibson W. Foster-Harris

Mrs. Dorothy K. Preston

James C. Mayfield
Dr. Victor E. Monnett
Dr. E. E. Dale
Ralph Shead

APPOINTMENTS:

David Vaughn Ashbaucher, Computer Laboratory Manager (Main Campus), \$9,000 for 12 months, July 1, 1966.

David William Barrett, General Counselor, Financial Aids, \$6,060 for 12 months, August 2, 1966.

Harry S. Boyd, Practicum Supervisor, Psychological Clinic, no salary, June 1, 1966.

Robert Charles Edwards, Practicum Supervisor, Psychological Clinic, \$4,200 for 12 months, September 1, 1966 to September 1, 1967.

Charles R. Gassway, Acting Director, Oklahoma Fishery Research Laboratory, \$4,020 for 12 months, 1/2 time, July 1, 1966.

Larry John Hagerson, Assistant Director, University Foundation, \$13,500 for 12 months, August 15, 1966.

Donald J. Huntington, Accountant II, Physical Plant, \$7,176 for 12 months, July 20, 1966.

Karen Sue Koger, X-Ray and Medical Technologist, Student Health Service, \$4,188 for 12 months, September 1, 1966.

John Matthew MacLeod, Freshman Basketball and Assistant Baseball Coach, \$458 per month, September 1, 1966.

Dennis R. Maxey, Assistant Director, Bureau of Business Research, \$11,000 for 12 months, September 1, 1966.

Rens M. Miles, Auditor II, Auditing Office, \$6,060 for 12 months, August 8, 1966.

Juanita Allison Miller, Director, Anthropology Osage Museum, \$400 per month, August 1, 1966 to June 1, 1967.

Jack L. Morrison, Acting Director, Computer Laboratories, July 27, 1966. Salary paid by Research Institute.

James Frederick Paschal, Assistant Director of High School Relations, University College, \$6,840 for 12 months, August 15, 1966. Resigned as Graduate Assistant in Journalism.

Guy E. Anderson, Jr., Extension Specialist II, School and Community Services, \$8,316 for 12 months, August 22, 1966.

Emma Argueta, Extension Specialist II, El Salvador Peace Corps Project, \$750 per month, July 20 to November 1, 1966.

Jerry S. Compton, Extension Specialist II Trainee, School and Community Services, \$2,400 for 12 months, 1/2 time, July 1, 1966 to July 1, 1967.

Karen Rita Crites, Extension Specialist II, El Salvador Peace Corps Project, \$700 per month, July 4 to November 1, 1966.

Ellen Mary Dewey, Extension Specialist II, Puerto Rico Peace Corps Project, \$700 per month, July 11 to November 1, 1966.

William Arthur Dewey, Extension Specialist II, Puerto Rico Peace Corps Project, \$700 per month, July 11 to November 1, 1966.

Peggy Nan Gill, Assistant Director of Public Information for Continuing Education, \$6,516 for 12 months, August 15, 1966.

Forrest Lee Hayden, Extension Specialist II, Southwest Center for Human Relations Studies, \$10,344 for 12 months, July 1, 1966 to July 1, 1967.

Elden E. Jacobson, Extension Specialist II, School and Community Services (Title I), rate of \$12,000 for 9 months, September 1, 1966 to January 1, 1967. Also appointed Adjunct Assistant Professor of Sociology, no salary, September 1, 1966.

David Kaufman, Extension Specialist II, Puerto Rico Peace Corps Project, \$700 per month, July 5 to November 1, 1966.

Pattye Weaver Kennedy, Extension Specialist II, School and Community Services, \$8,000 for 12 months, July 1, 1966.

James David Lowry, Extension Specialist II, Southwest Center for Human Relations Studies, \$300 per month, 1/2 time, July 1, 1966 to July 1, 1967.

Samuel P. Lyles, reappointed Education Specialist, Civil Defense Program, \$8,112 for 12 months, July 1, 1966 to July 1, 1967.

John Frederick Malone, Extension Specialist II, Business and Industrial Services, \$10,092 for 12 months, July 11, 1966.

Warren Lee Osburn, resppointed Extension Specialist II, Civil Defense Program, \$8,112 for 12 months, July 1, 1966 to July 1, 1967.

Kathleen M. Petty, Extension Specialist II, School and Community Services, \$5,364 for 12 months, August 8, 1966.

James Clayton Rutherford, reappointed Social Science Specialist, Civil Defense Program, \$7,728 for 12 months, July 1, 1966 to July 1, 1967.

Phyllis Higgins Tether, Pre-School Teacher, Kickspoo North Canadian Project, \$465.83 per month, June 1, 1966 to July 1, 1967.

James Malcolm White, Extension Specialist II, Puerto Rico Peace Corps Project, \$700 per month, June 29 to November 1, 1966.

Robert John Whitaker, reappointed Physical Science Specialist, Civil Defense Program, \$8112 for 12 months, July 1, 1966 to July 1, 1967.

Anne Holman Woolf, Research Director, Education, Business and Industrial Regional Rehabilitation Research Institute, \$1,000 per month, September 1, 1966 to August 1, 1967. Also appointed Visiting Assistant Professor of Management.

CHANGES:

William C. Cronin, Jr., title changed from Freshman Basketball Coach and Golf Coach to Assistant Basketball Coach and Golf Coach, salary increased from \$3,888 for 9 months to \$7,008 for 12 months, July 25, 1966.

Mildred O. Jacobs, Assistant Director, Psychological Clinic, salary increased from \$10,608 to \$10,860 for 12 months, July 1, 1966 to July 1, 1967.

Charles E. McDaniel, title changed from Extension Specialist II, School and Community Services, to Acting Director, Multi-Purpose Center, salary increased from \$8,724 to \$10,860 for 12 months, July 1, 1966 to July 1, 1967.

James W. Mehl, title changed from Senior Programmer to Systems Analyst, Computer Laboratories, salary increased from \$6,060 to \$9,600 for 12 months, July 1, 1966.

Wanda L. Mushrim, Accountant II, Book Exchange, salary increased from \$5,100 to \$6,360 for 12 months, August 1, 1966.

Frank Pasierb, Assistant Director of Housing, salary increased from \$9,384 to \$12,000 for 12 months, August 1, 1966.

Kermit O. Rayburn, discontinue title of Director, Center for Survival Studies; will continue as Extension Specialist III and Director, Southwest Center for Law Enforcement, August 1, 1966.

Joaquin S. Rogers, title changed from Proofreader to Associate Editor, University Press Publishing, salary increased from \$4,404 to \$5,496 for 12 months, August 22, 1966. Given professional status.

Le Anne Stacy, title changed from Auditor II Trainee to Auditor II, Auditing Office, salary changed from \$202.50 per month, 1/2 time, to \$6,060 for 12 months, full time, August 1, 1966. Given professional status.

RESIGNATIONS:

Nina F. Bauman, Extension Specialist II, College of Continuing Education, September 1, 1966.

Neil J. Dikeman, Assistant Director, Bureau of Business Research, September 8, 1966.

Albert Nick Ferraro, Extension Specialist II, Puerto Rico Peace Corps Project, July 12, 1966.

Estelle Smith Gaymon, Extension Specialist II, Puerto Rico Peace Corps Project, July 11, 1966.

Virginia R. Hall, Extension Specialist II, School and Community Services, August 23, 1966.

John P. Hogan, Extension Specialist II, Puerto Rico Peace Corps Project, July 1, 1966.

Charles Paul Johnson, Director of Programming, Computer Laboratories, July 22, 1966.

Arlin E. Lee, Had Project Engineer, Computer Laboratories, October 1, 1966.

Robert Stever Lipton, Public Information Assistant, University Relations, August 18, 1'66.

Kenneth Sutierland Johnson, Geologist II, Oklahoma Geological Survey, August 24, 1666.

Charles E. Maudlin, Director of Computer and Electronic Data Processing Laboratories, September 29, 1966.

William S. Moore, Staff Physician, Student Health Service, September 1, 1966.

William Arthur Moss, Associate Editor, University Press Publishing, October 17, 1956.

Eleanor '. Muskrat, Extension Specialist II, School and Community Services, August '3, 1966.

Teress Rose Ramirez, Extension Specialist II Trainee, School and Community Ser/Lees, August 16, 1966.

Grald T. Sample, Extension Specialist II, Southwest Center for Human Relations Studies, September 1, 1966.

CHANGES IN PROFESSIONAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE SALARY RATES FOR 1966-67

		PRESENT	PROPOSED
NAME	TITLE	SALARY	SALARY
PRESIDENT'S OFFICE			
Pete Kyle McCarter	Vice President; Professor of English	\$23,000	\$24,500
Horace B. Brown	Vice President for Business		•,
	and Finance; Dean, College of Business Administration;	of.	
Carl D. Riggs	Professor of Marketing Vice President for Graduate Studies and Dean of the Graduate College; Professor	22,000	23,500
	of Zoology	20,000	21,000
Ada R. Arnold	Assistant to the President	7,176	7,920
BUSINESS MANAGER'S OFFICE			
Dud Giezentanner	Business Manager	18,000	19,000
CONTROLLER'S OFFICE			
Q. M. Spradling	Controller, Acting Director of Veteran's Affairs	12,600	13,500
John B. Freeman	Assistant Controller	11,124	12,252
William L. Dunsworth	Chief Accountant	11,124	12,252
Kenneth L. Garrett	Accountant III	6,672	7,176
Cecil L. Thompson	Accountant II	7,920	8,520
Jay Frank Elsea	Accountant II	6,516	7,176
PURCHASING OFFICE			•
D. R. Kimrey	Director of Purchasing	12,600	13,500
Ansley Aynesworth	Assistant Director of Purchasing	8,940	9,612
Jack E. Griffin	Assistant Director of	•	·
	Purchasing	8,724	9,384
DATA PROCESSING SERVICE			
Clarence W. Skinner	Director	10,860	11,676
AUDITING OFFICE			
William H. Jordan, Jr.	Internal Auditor	11,124	12,552
DMISSIONS AND RECORDS			
J. E. Fellows	Dean of Admissions and Registrar; Professor of		
.	Education	15,000	16,000
Boyce D. Timmons	Director of Registration	10,596	11,124
Ruth Arnold	Director of Admissions	8,112	8,940 6,516
Racheal Keely Rough A. Boggess	Recorder Assistant to the Dean of	6,060	0,510
	Admissions and Registrar	5,496	6,060
DEANS OF STUDENTS			
Dorothy A. Truex	Dean of Women	11,124	12,552
William Rex Brown	Dean of Men	10,344	11,676
Lemoise A. Savage	Director of Student Safety	-	
	and Welfare	5,772	6,060

See Are seen	h. 4. 1. 2. 1. 2. 1. 2. 1. 2. 1. 2. 1. 2. 1. 2. 1. 2. 1. 2. 1. 2. 1. 2. 1. 2. 1. 2. 1. 2. 1. 2. 1. 2. 1. 2. 1.	FRESTIME	Proposei	
<u>HAME</u>	Tilu	SALARY	SALARY	REMARKS
EMPLOYMENT SERVICES				
Leonard D. Harper A. Gayle Grotts	Director Assistant Director	\$12,300 6,840	\$13,500 7,356	
Clifford T. Stephens	Employment Supervisor	6,060	6,516	
GUIDANCE SERVICE				
William J. Mummery	Director; Assistant Professor			
Harry H. Chapman	of Psychology Staff Psychologist	10,860 7,356	11,964 7,728	
Dorothy Anne Foster	Counseling Psychologist	4,806	4,926	1/2 time
DEAN OF STUDENT SERVICES				
Jodie C. Smith	Dean	15,000	16,500	
UNIVERSITY RELATIONS				
David A. Burr	Assistant to the President for	•		
	University Relations and Development	14,500	16,500	
James E. Swain	Director of University Relation	ons	20,000	
•	and Director of Public Information	12,000	13,176	
Blaine H. Smith	Administrative Assistant	6,516	6,840	
Harold V. Keith Elizabeth C. Stubler	Director, Sports Publicity Assistant Director and Editor	10,344	11,124	
who -	of Public Information	8,112	8,940	
J ac k L. Yack Addie Lee Barker	Director of Graphic Arts Public Information Assistant	7,356	7,920	
Connie P. Ruggles	Public Information Assistant	6,672 5,388	6,840 5,940	
Zelbert L. Moore	Public Information Assistant	4,188	4,620	
ALUMNI RELATIONS AND UNIVERSITY OF OKLAHOMA FOUR	NDATION			
Guy H. Brown	Executive Secretary, Alumni		•	
Manual and Talanda	Association	11,592	11,964	
Charles F. Long	Assistant Executive Secretary, Alumni Association; Assistan			
•	Editor, Alumni Publications	6,060	6,360	
Ronald K. Green	Director, Alumni Development Fund; Assistant Director, University of Oklahoma			
Paul V. Galloway	Foundation Editor, Alumni Publications	10,860 5,916	11,400 6,204	
•	•	J, 710	0,204	
DEAN'S OFFICE, COLLEGE OF			•	
John S. Ezell	Dean of the College of Arts as Sciences; David Ross Boyd	nd		
	Professor of History	20,000	22,000	
DEAN'S OFFICE, COLLEGE OF	FINE ARTS			
F. Donald Clark	Dean of the College of Fine And Professor of Drama	rts; 18,000	19,000	
DEAN'S OFFICE, COLLEGE OF	PHARMACY	·		
Loyd E. Harris	Dean of the College of Pharmac Professor of Pharmacy	ту; 16,500	17,500	
DEAN'S OFFICE, UNIVERSITY	COLLEGE			
Glenn C. Couch	Dean of the University College	•	A1 AAA	
John R. Morris	Professor of Botany Assistant Dean, University Calleges Assistant Professor	20,000	21,000	
	College; Assistant Professor of Psychology	13,200	14,172	

NAME	TITLE	PRESENT Salary	FROPOSEI Salary	remarks
UNIVERSITY PRESS	de na na de State	WARANTAN CA	DALSTILL	
Savoie Lottinville	Director of University Press;			
William R. Clark	Professor Superintendent of Printing	\$18,600	\$20,800	
Mery E. Stith	Division Editor	8,724 9,156	8,940 9,384	
Jimmy C. Billingsley	Associate Art Editor	9,156	9,384	
William M. Casen	Assistant Art Editor	8,724	8,940	
Delora F. Tinsley	Accountant III	8,112	8,316	
BOOKS ABROAD				
Bernice G. Duncan	Acting Editor; Assistant Professor of Modern Language	er 5,916	6,204	Plus \$50 per mo. as Acting
				Editor
LAW REVIEW				
Porhama O. Chumakiti	A			
Barbara O. Churchill	Associate Editor	4,860	4,980	
Westheimer Field				
Joseph E. Coulter	Airport Manager; Associate Professor of Aviation	11,400	11,964	
Jack D. Lauderdele	University Pilot	9,852	10,344	
EXTENSION DIVISION				
Thurman J. White	Dean of College of Continuing Education; Dean of Extension Division; Lecturer in Educat	3 ·	21,000	
Maston L. Powers	Assistant Dean for Business at Industrial Services		15,000	
Jesse E. Burkett	Assistant Dean, College of Continuing Education	13,500	15,000	
Eugene F. Cates	Assistant Dean for School and Community Services	13,200	15,000	
John J. Long	Director, Audio-Visual Education; Extension Special	ŕ	13,000	
	III; Lecturer in Education	8,520	8,724	
Howell W. McGae	Director, Adult Admissions			
	and Records in Office of Admissions and Records	10,596	11,400	
William C. Howard, II	Assistant Manager, Cklahoma Center for Continuing		•	
Harry H. Hoghn	Education	9,612	10,092	1965-66:
nally n. nogim	Extension Specialist III; Menager Oklahoma Center for Continuing Education-Housing		18,880	\$4,000 paid as special
	Continuing Education-Housing	g 15,600	10,560	payment as per employ- mentcontrac
Richard H. Hancock	Extension Specialist III;		•	
John B. O'Mara	Director, International Training Programs	12,000	12,900	
•	Extension Specialist III; Director, Southwest Center for Human Relations Studies	10,092	11,124	
Thomas L. Farrell	Extension Specialist III: Executive Chef-Menager of Food Service	10,344	10,860	
Ruscell R. Myers	Extension Specialist III; Director, Correspondence Stu	•	8,940	
Emery A. Link	Director, Office of Special Projects; Extension Speciali	st		
C. J. Roberts	III Extension Specialist II, Urbs	12,300	12,900	
	Science Training Program	11,124	12,252	

NAME	TITLE	Present Salary	Proposei Salary	REMARKS
EXTENSION DIVISION (Cont.)	1			
Samuel C. Nigh	Extension Specialist III; Director, Military	\$10 E06	611 104	
Joe Allan Leone	Residence Programs Extension Specialist III, Director, Adult Guidance and Counseling and Evalua	\$10,596	\$11,124	
Ernest E. Sellars	tion and Testing Extension Specialist III; Director, Southwest Center	11,000	11,600	
Kermit O. Rayburn	for Gerontological Studie Extension Specialist III; Director, Center for Surv Studies; Director, Souther Center for Law Enforcemen Education	s 8,500 ival esc	9,156 11,124	
Robert L. Haught	Extension Specialist II	15,000	15,300	
Leonard M. Logan, II M. Glen Pool	Extension Specialist II Extension Specialist II; Assistant Coordinator of	8,940	9,384	
	Liberal Studies	9,384	10,092	
Larry Paul Martin Victor L. Jackson	Extension Specialist II Director of Programs, Leade	8,520	9,156	
	ship Training Center	7,536	7,920	
Sharon D. O'Kelley	Extension Specialist II	6,400	6,516	
Kitty S. Rountree	Extension Specialist II	7,728	7,920	
Jacob Johnson	Extension Specialist II; Consultant in Junior Coll	•	,,,,,	
	Program	7,200	7,536	1/2 time
John M. Gilmore Dot Adams	Extension Specialist II Extension Specialist II,	6,672	7,008	
	Department of Health Stud	ies 6,672	7,008	
Jerry L. Hargis	Extension Specialist II; Conference Center Program			
Mary K. Johnson	Coordinator Extension Specialist II,	7,536	8,112	
nary Re Journson	Oklahoma Family Life Inst:	frute 6 360	6,672	
William Tandy James	Extension Specialist II	6,360	6,516	
Nine P. Bouman	Extension Specialist II	4,620	4,860	
Loucyle W. Aynesworth	Extension Specialist II	5,232	5,496	
James W. Heston	Extension Specialist II	5,232	(5,496)	L.A. with- out pay to 1-1-67
Mary M. James	Extension Specialist II	4,980	5,232	
Mason A. LaFevers	Extension Specialist II	5,496	5,628	
Grace J. Penney	Extension Specialist II	4,740	4,860	
UNIVERSITY LIBRARIES				
Arthur M. McAndally	Director of University Libr Professor of Library Scie		17,500	
PHYSICAL PLANT				
John H. Kuhlman	Director	16,000	17,200	
Lendon E. Hunt	Assistant Director	11,700	12,552	
Robert H. Rucker	Supervisor of Grounds;	·	•	
•	Landscape Architect	9,384	9,852	
Robert C. White, Jr. Merle E. Wanzer	Engineering Assistant Accountant II	10,092 5,232	10,860 5,628	
ATHLETIC DEPARTMENT				
Kenneth E. Farris	Associate Director of Athletics and Business			
	Manager	12,300	12,864	
John D. Martin	Track Coach	7,008	7,536	
Jay Tom Evans	Wrestling Coach	8,316	8,940	
Jay S. Markley	Swimming Coach	7,008	7,356	9 mos.

		PRESENT	PROPOSED	
NAME	TITLE	SALARY	SALARY REMARKS	
ATHLETIC DEPARTMENT (Cont.)	<u> </u>			
Russell H. Porterfield Wallace L. Bevers	Gymnasties Coach Assistant Business Manager,	\$ 6,516	\$ 6,840	
Gerald F. Keen	Athletic Business Office Special Assistant, Athletic	7,536	7,728	
	Department and Tennis Coach	7,572	7,920	
UNIVERSITY BOOK EXCHANGE				
J. C. Mayfield	Director	13,700	14,500	
James W. Stafford James W. Andrews	Assistant Director	8,112	8,724	
James w. Andrews	Assistant Director	7,008	7,536	
STUDENT HEALTH SERVICE				
Donald F. Robinson	Director	17,100	20,000 *	
James L. Nicholson James Owen Taylor	Assistant Director, Medical Assistant Director,	15,300	18,000 *	
Manufact Nielste	Administrative	8,724	9,384	
Charles L. Nickolls James R. Ramsay	Staff Psychiatrist	15,000	17,600 *	
Allen T. Stewart, Jr.	Staff Physician Staff Physician	13,500 13,200	16,000 * 16,000 *	
Nicholas J. Olivier	Staff Physician	12,900	15,624 *	
Jack Behrman	Staff Physician	12,600	15,252*	
Gordon R. Stotts	Pharmacist	7,728	7,920	
Mayme J. Miller	Supervisor, Hospital Nurses	5,100	5,232	
Lourene L. Henry	Clinic Nurse Shpervisor	5,100	5,232	
Esther Louise Ward Amelia P. Childress	Dietitian	6,204	6,516	
Chlora M. Wiley	General Duty Nurse General Duty Nurse	4,296 4,2 96	4,404 4,404	
Jewel Ryker	General Duty Nurse	4,296	4,404	
Joyce F. Bettes	General Duty Nurse	4,296	4,404	
Mary E. O'Brien	General Duty Nurse	4,188	4,296	
Margaret D. Tonemah	Chief X-Ray and Medical			
	Technician	5,364	5,628	
Sharrell Kae Campbell	X-Ray Lab Technician	4,188	4,296	
Francile A. Hammond Isabel L. Knoepfli	X-Ray and Medical Technician	4,860 4,887	5,100	
Lena M. Jantz	Physical Therapist Medical Records Librarian	4,980	5,232	
SOONER CITY NURSERY SCHOOL	AND KINDERGARTEN			
Erma R. Keeley	Director	6,516	7,008	
Donna Kaye Cornell	Kindergarten Teacher	4,565	5,423 11 mos.	
Helen E. Reynolds	Pre-School Teacher	4,136	4,994 ll mos.	
Ruth Fielden	Pre-School Teacher	3,575	4,433 11 mos.	
STUDENT PUBLICATIONS				
Cecil H. Brite	General Manager, Journalism Press	10,092	10,596	
UNIVERSITY HOUSING				
W. H. Strickland, Jr. L. Gilbert Merrit	Director of Housing Assistant Director of	10,344 8,112	12,252 8,724	
Myrtle B. Kellerhals	Housing Supervisor of Food Service	7,728	8,520	
L. S. Ethington	Accountant III	6,840	7,356	
John B. McDade	Accountant II	5,916	6,204	
Jean S. Hjelle	Social Director for Housing	4,980	5,100	

^{*}Effective September 1, 1966

IV	\$15,600	\$17,200
IV	13,700	15,252
IV	12,300	12,552
III	10,092	10,344
III	10,344	10,596
or	8.724	9,613
	III III IV	IV 13,700 IV 12,300 III 10,092 III 10,344

Henry Duffield Steele, Assistant Director of Public Information for Continuing Education, August 22, 1966.

RETIREMENT:

Edith L. Flood, Associate Editor, Oklahoma Geological Survey, July 21, 1966.

Approved on motion by Regent Houchin.

President Cross reported Dr. Carl C. Branson has asked to be relieved of administrative responsibility for the Oklahoma Geological Survey. He recommended that Dr. Branson's resignation as Director of the Survey be accepted, to become effective as of the date of appointment of a new Director, with the understanding that he will continue as a member of the Survey staff on a twelve-month basis and that his tenured rank as Professor of Geology will not be affected.

Approved on motion by Regent Davidson.

President Cross recommended approval of salary increases for administrative and professional staff as shown on the following pages, to be effective July 1, 1966.

Approved on motion by Regent Little.

President Cross reported that for a number of years the University has waived the non-resident fee for a non-resident graduate student employed (usually with the title of Graduate Assistant) in academic work for one-half time (six semester hours or the equivalent) or more. It has come to our attention that most universities now set the minimum requirement for waiver of the non-resident fee at one-quarter time (three hours), and that this has an adverse effect upon our ability to recruit Graduate Assistants of high ability. Very few Graduate Assistants are assigned as little as one-quarter time teaching. This is likely to happen only now and then in the career of a Graduate Assistant, and, when it does happen, such an assignment is almost always for the convenience of the University. To reduce the minimum load allowing a waiver of the non-resident fee would not, therefore, have a serious effect upon the University's total fee income.

In view of these circumstances President Cross recommended that the basic regulation that "a graduate student who is employed by the University for academic work for one-half time or more is not required to pay the non-resident fee" be revised to read: "a graduate student who is employed by the University for academic work for one-quarter time or more is not required to pay the non-resident fee," and that this change become effective for the fall semester of the 1966-67 session.

Approved on motion by Regent Davidson.

On July 25 the Regents were advised by mail that it was necessary to change the date of the hearing on the new student regulations. Unanimous approval was received. The hearing was held on August 22 and no objections as to the rules were made.

President Cross recommended that the action of the Board by mail vote be confirmed and the rules and regulations as published be adopted by the Regents.

Approved on motion by Regent Calvert.

President Cross recommended that the Regents give to the University Research Park the name "Swearingen Research Park," in recognition of the long and dedicated service of Dr. Lloyd E. Swearingen to the University. He recommended further that the new name be effective as of July 1, 1966, the first day after Dr. Swearingen's retirement.

Approved on motion by Regent Davies.

On October 12, 1960, the Regents adopted a resolution authorizing Vice Presidents of the University of Oklahoma to sign payrolls and other official documents on behalf of the President of the University during his absence. This resolution included authorization for Dr. Lloyd E. Swearingen, who is now retired, to sign such documents.

President Cross recommended that the Regents adopt the following resolution which includes Dr. Carl D. Riggs, Vice President for Graduate Studies, in place of the previous resolution:

RESOLUTION

WHEREAS, on occasion the President of the University of Oklahoma, G. L. Cross, on account of official business, vacations, illness, or other unavoidable cause is absent from the campus of the University of Oklahoma, Norman, Oklahoma; and

WHEREAS, during such absence by the President of the University of Oklahoma it is essential that provision be made so that payrolls, and other official documents be signed or executed in the same manner as if the President of the University, G. L. Cross, were present;

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: (1) That in the absence of President G. L. Cross, Dr. Pete Kyle McCarter, Vice President of the University of Oklahoma, is hereby authorized to sign payrolls and other official documents that normally would be signed by President G. L. Cross if he were present; and

- (2) That in the absence of both President G. L. Cross and Dr. Pete Kyle McCarter, Dr. Horace B. Brown, Vice President for Business and Finance, is hereby authorized to sign such payrolls and official documents; and
- (3) In the absence of President G. L. Cross, Dr. Pete Kyle Mc-Carter and Dr. Horace B. Brown, Dr. Carl D. Riggs, Vice President for Graduate Studies, is hereby authorized to sign such payrolls and official documents.

Approved on motion by Regent Calvert.

On August 23 a mail vote was taken of the Regents requesting approval to borrow \$20,000 from the State Regents' Revolving Loan Fund to be used to match funds provided by the National Science Foundation for the construction of housing facilities at the Biological Station. It is anticipated the loan will be repaid with funds in the same amount which we expect the Legislature to reappropriate early in the 1967 session. In the possible event the Legislature fails to reappropriate the funds needed, the loan will be repaid from funds allocated to us under Section 13 and New College Funds.

All members of the Board approved requesting a loan from the State Regents and President Cross recommended confirmation of this mail vote.

Approved on motion by Regent Davidson.

President Cross recommended approval of the following allocations for the second quarter of this fiscal year from Section 13 and New College Funds:

Institutional Furniture and Equipment	\$10,000
Matching National Science Foundation Equipment Grants	10,000
Completion of Remodeling in the Nuclear Engineering Building for Employment Services	12,000
Campus Lighting	10,000
Parking Facilities at Noble Fisheries Research Center	3,000
Partial Repayment to University Foundation for Property Purchased at 1005 Jenkins	20,000
Major Alterations and Improvements	10,000
	\$75,000

Approved on motion by Regent Little.

President Cross reported the interim construction loan of \$1,500,000 which the Regents approved on June 9, 1966, for the construction of the new housing facility has now been expended on the project. Because of the unfavorable bond market, the sale of the bonds has been delayed in the hope that the market would improve. In order to avoid interrupting construction on the facility it is necessary to negotiate an additional \$3,000,000 loan to provide funds to pay the contractor until the proceeds of the sale of the bonds are available. The Liberty National Bank of Oklahoma City has worked out the details and has agreed to an additional loan which will require the addition of partners in order to provide a total construction loan of \$4,500,000. The additional loan, however, will require that the loan be repaid within 120 days. Consequently, plans are now being made to sell the bonds at the October 13 meeting of the Board.

President Cross called the Regents' attention to the fact that the interim construction loan does not actually constitute an additional cost to the University. The rate of interest to be paid on the loan is determined to be the average interest rate on the bonds at the time of the sale.

President Cross recommended that the Regents approve the negotiation of an additional \$3,000,000 interim construction loan to provide for a total construction loan of \$4,500,000 and that the Regents authorize the President of the Board to sign the loan agreement and the note to complete the transaction.

Approved on motion by Regent Houchin.

President Cross reported Wilson and Company has finished the photogrammetric mapping of Max Westheimer Field and the payment to Wilson and Company in the amount of \$7,750 is now payable.

President Cross recommended that the Regents accept the photogrammetric mapping of Max Westheimer Field as complete and authorize the payment of \$7,750 to Wilson and Company as the full and final payment for their service.

Approved on motion by Regent Houchin.

The Housing Department has recommended that vestibules be installed in the outside entrances to Adams Center. The entrances are advisable in order to protect the floors of the remainder of the entrance area and lounge area for the Center.

The architectural firm of Black, West, and Wozencraft volunteered to prepare the plans and specifications for the installation of the vestibules as an added service to the University. The firm agreed there would be no charge for the service performed. As a result, the plans and specifications were completed and invitations to bid on the installation were circulated.

The following bids were received:

Associated Glass Co., Oklahoma City	\$6,26 9
Southwestern Glass and Mirror, Oklahoma City	6,587
Campbell Glass and Mirror, Oklahoma City	9,693

President Cross recommended that the Regents accept the bid from the low bidder, Associated Glass Company, Oklahoma City, in the amount of \$6,269 and authorize the installation of the vestibules.

Approved on motion by Regent Houchin.

President Cross reported the Housing Department and the Physical Plant have suggested that certain changes be made in the plans for the construction of the new Towers. The changes are as follows:

ITEM NO. 1

Description of Change: Change two No. 6 feeders to mechanical items Nos. 303 and 304 to one No. 2 feeder to supply both items in common. Refer to electrical plan No. E-1D.

Reason for Change: Recommended by our Consulting Engineers, Carnahan and Thompson, for proper operation of building, and to provide more flexibility.

Change in Contract Price: No change in contract price for this revision. Item No. 1 - N/C

ITEM NO. 2

Description of Change: On Panelboard BP-1, change two 3P125A breakers for items Nos. 303 and 304 to one 3P150A breaker for items Nos. 303 and 304 and one 3P125A spare breaker. Refer to electrical plan No. E-8D.

Reason for Change: Recommended by our Consulting Engineers, Carnahan and Thompson, for proper operation of building, and to provide more flexibility.

3,

Change in Contract Price: No change in contract price for this revision. Item No. 2 - N/C

ITEM NO. 3

Description of Change: Provide additional street lighting; refer to plans Nos. LS-1, LS-2. (a) Add four yard lighting fixtures on the north side of First Street, exactly opposite the four fixtures shown on the south side of First Street. (b) Add five yard lighting fixtures on the south side of Fourth Street exactly opposite the five fixtures shown on the north side of Fourth Street. (c) Add three yard lighting fixtures on the north side of Adams Center Dormitory buildings, approximately 4' north of the curb line opposite the fixtures on the south side of First Street at the parking area covered by base contract. (d) Extend circuits for the additional lights the shortest way with sleeves under the streets.

Reason for Change: Recommended by University.

Change in Contract Price: Per Contractor's quotation of August 9, 1966,

Electrical Subcontractor, add \$7,456.00

Sales Tax, Workmen's Compensation,

SS 15.30 \$7,471.30 Overhead and Profit, 15% 1,120.70

Item No. 3, Add - \$8,592.00

ITEM NO. 4

Description of Change: Furnish and install a 100A 3P, non-fusible, heavy duty switch on south wall of room No. 34 for elevator machine. Run a No. 6 feeder to this switch from unit substation distribution section. Refer to electrical plan No. E-3C.

ITEM NO. 5

<u>Description of Change</u>: Furnish and install one 3P100A breaker in distribution section space No. 12 for elevator feeder protection. Refer to electrical plan No. E-6C.

Reason for Change: To provide power panel which was inadvertently omitted from electrical contract drawings for the hydraulic elevator machine in cafeteria building.

Change in Contract Price: Per Contractor's quotation of August 9, 1966,

Electrical Subcontractor, add \$393.00

verhead and profit, 15% (\$58.95) 59.00

Oltems Nos. 4 and 5, Add - \$452.00

ITEM NO. 6

<u>Description of Change</u>: Furnish Ashcroft Duragauges with phenol case in lieu of Ashcroft Quality Guages specified in Section 32, Pages 29 and 30, Paragraph 79; also furnish pressure snubbers on all gauges.

Reason for Change: To upgrade the quality of pressure gauges in the mechanical system.

Change in Contract Price: Per Contractor's quotation of August 9, 1966,

Mechanical Subcontractor, add \$1,870.00

Overhead and Profit, 15% (\$280.50) 280.00

Item No. 6, Add - \$2,150.00

ITEM NO. 7

Description of Change: On all ferrous chilled water and chilled-heating water pipe valves and fittings apply one coat of a mixture of ground asbestos fibre and asphalt, or two coats of phenolic read lead before insulation is applied. Where threaded joints occur, all pipe dope shall be cleaned from the threads and the entire thread covered with the above.

Reason for Change: Recommended by our Consulting Engineers, Carnahan and Thompson, to upgrade the mechanical system by increasing pipe life.

Change in Contract Price: Per Contractor's quotation of August 9, 1966,

Mechanical Subcontractor, add \$12,760.00

Overhead and Profit, 15% 1,914.00

Item No. 7, add - \$14,674.00

TOTAL CHANGE IN CONTRACT PRICE

Item No. 1, no change	\$ -0-
Item No. 2, no change	-0-
Item No. 3, add	8,592.00
Item No. 4;) add	452.00
Item No. 5,	452.00
Item No. 6, add	2,150.00
Item No. 7, add	14,674.00

Total Increase in Contract Price, Items No. 1 through 7 - \$25,868.00

The changes would facilitate the proper operation of the facility and would reduce the maintenance cost after completion.

President Cross recommended that the Regents approve the change order as outlined and authorize the President of the Board to sign the document.

Approved on motion by Regent Little.

Sometime ago the Regents requested that a study be made to determine the advisability of installing gasoline storage equipment at Max Westheimer Field.

The University now has storage capacity of 8,000 gallons for each 80/87 octane and 100/130 octane gasoline. The minimum order for each type of gasoline is a transport load of 5,000 gallons. Since the storage capacity is considerably above the transport load, the University is now equipped to handle efficiently the two types of gasolines.

It would appear, therefore, that if our difficulty in attracting bidders has been related to the storage capacity, the problem has had to do only with jet fuel. This fuel is purchased entirely for resale and the demand is very erratic. For example, in one year the University sold only one truck load. However, the following year sales picked up considerably. Aero Commander is virtually the sole customer for jet fuel and sales to Aero Commander could either decrease or be eliminated at any time.

In order to provide storage and truck facilities for jet fuel, it is estimated that the cost would be between \$12,000 and \$15,000. If the University should lose Aero Commander as a jet fuel customer the facilities would be of little or no use to the University.

The Purchasing Office believes that additional companies would be more interested in bidding on the jet fuel contract if the contract period could be extended from a one-year contract to a three or preferably a five-year contract for furnishing jet fuels as needed.

President Cross recommended that the University not install truck and storage facilities to handle jet fuel, but that when the contract is rebid, the University Purchasing Office be authorized to request bids on a five-year basis.

Approved on motion by Regent Houchin.

The following bids received on two power files for the Office of Admissions and Records have been received:

Diebold Incorporated, Oklahoma City
Net, 60 day delivery

\$8,463.60

Remington Rand Office Systems, Oklahoma City Net. 90 day delivery

8,933.50

The purchase will be made from Section 13 and New College Funds. Both proposals meet spedifications. Bids were sent to 11 firms in Oklahoma City and Tulsa.

President Cross recommended that the bid be awarded to the low bidder, Diebold Incorporated, at a cost of \$8,463.60.

Approved on motion by Regent Houchin.

President Cross reported the following bids have been received on additional shelving for the University Library:

Fields Downs Randolph Co., Oklahoma City,	
delivered	\$6,857.88
Less 2%, 10 days	-137.16
	\$6,720.72
City Office Supply, Inc., Oklahoma City,	
delivered, net	\$6,731.00
Tulsa Stationery Company, Tulsa, delivered, net	\$6,941.67
C. B. McMilland Co., Inc., Oklahoma City,	
delivered, net	\$6,965.00

President Cross recommended that the bid be awarded to the low bidder, Fields Downs Randolph Company, Oklahoma City, at a net cost of \$6,720.72.

Approved on motion by Regent Sparks.

Two bids have been received on subscriptions to European (German and Slavic) magazines for the University Library for the calendar year 1967. Adjustments were necessary on each to arrive at a truly comparable total. These adjustments were needed because neither company bid complete and, on some irregular publications, the two bidders estimated that a different number of volumes would be published during 1967, thus a difference in bid price. The adjusted bids are as follows:

Walter J. Johnson, Inc., New York, net \$7,167.70
Otto Horrassowitz, Wiesbaden, Germany, net \$7,239.95

Both bids are subject to increases in publisher's prices for 1967. Bid forms were sent to all subscription agencies judged by Library personnel to be capable of handling this order.

President Cross recommended that the contract be awarded to Walter J. Johnson, Inc., New York, at a net estimated cost of \$7,167.70. This firm furnished the publications during 1966.

Approved on motion by Regent Houchin.

President Cross reported that as in the past, only one bid was received on subscriptions to British and Commonwealth magazines for the University Library for the calendar year 1967. This bid lists three items to be priced later when 1967 publisher's prices are obtained. Bid forms were sent to all subscription agencies judged by Library personnel to be capable of handling this order.

The bid received is:

B. F. Stevens and Brown Ltd., Arden House, Mill Lane, Godalming, Surrey, England, net

\$6,999.31

President Cross recommended that the bid be awarded to B. F. Stevens and Brown Ltd., at a net cost of \$6,999.31. This company handled this order in the past in a satisfactory manner.

Approved on motion by Regent Houchin.

President Cross reported that as in the past, only one bid was received on subscriptions to United States and Canadian magazines for the University Library for the calendar year 1967. Bid forms were sent to all subscription agencies judged by Library personnel to be capable of handling this order.

The bid received is:

Moore-Cottrell Subscription Agencies, Inc., New York \$26,824.73

Less discount by virtue of clubbing and

Library rates -446.88

\$26,377.85

President Cross recommended that the bid be awarded to the Moore-Cottrell Subscription Agencies, Inc., at an estimated net cost of \$26,377.85. This company has satisfactorily handled this order in the past.

Approved on motion by Regent Houchin.

President Cross recommended that the Regents confirm the mail vote by which they unanimously approved a special fee for Zoology 25, Human Anatomy, in the amount of the cost of materials used, effective with

enrollments in the course for the first semester of the 1966-1967 academic year. The cost for 1966-1967 has been established at \$25.00.

At the same time, President Cross reported that the Oklahoma State Regents for Higher Education have approved this fee at the specific amount of \$25.00.

Approved.

There being no further business the meeting adjourned at 11:50 a.m.

Emil R. Kraettli, Secretary

Others attending the meeting were as follows:

Blaine Smith, University Relations (operating the tape recorder)
Elizabeth Stubler, University Relations
Sandra Turner, The Norman Transcript
Bob Ruggles, Oklahoma City Times
Travis Walsh, The Tulsa World
Linda Johnson, Oklahoma Daily
Bill Liggins, The Norman Transcript